

THE FORUM ON *European Expansion and Global Interaction*

CONSTITUTION of FEEGI (adopted June 1994; revised April 1998):

PREAMBLE

How the technology, languages, institutions, and even pastimes of Western Europe came to dominate global civilization-or better said, came to create it-is the greatest historical question of modern times. The name given to this process, the "Expansion of Europe," dates from the 1880s, but it received its proper scope in 1916 when the late Columbia University professor William Robert Shepherd identified the movement as bidirectional and called attention to its "outward" and "inward" dimensions. Shepherd perceived that not only had European colonialism forever transformed the non-Western world, but that simultaneously, new ideas, products, and peoples from non-European cultures flowed back into Europe and inexorably changed the "mother" civilization as well. Finally, others have drawn attention to the diverse and, in some cases, totally

different ways in which different cultures-African, Indian, Chinese, Japanese, Amerindian-interacted with European expansion.

Universities in the United States and Canada have never institutionalized the study of European expansion, and there are few specific faculty positions or courses of study allotted to it. Instead, the unique history of European expansion and its consequences is usually subsumed under the rubrics of "global history" or "world civilization," neither of which captures the singular importance to modern history of European expansion in particular.

Although some historians, archaeologists, anthropologists, linguists, and specialists in the history of art regularly devote their best efforts to the study of European expansion and the global interactions that followed from it, they have, so far, labored in isolation or at best had the benefit only of informal contacts with like-minded colleagues at other institutions. The newly established Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction is designed to provide what its name implies: a regular meeting place for those

concerned with the study of this subject, where its membership can sharpen and/or broaden concepts, learn about work in progress, and meet new colleagues working on related problems.

Finally, the Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction is intended to facilitate the teaching of European expansion as an advanced undergraduate course by giving its members a new feeling of purpose and solidarity. Through its corporate role as a publicist, the Forum will help to convince deans and department heads that European expansion and its direct consequences is a field here to stay and ought to be reflected in college and university curriculums.

I. PURPOSE:

The Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction exists to promote study and research related to the history of European expansion and the complicated reactions to it worldwide. The initial focus of the Forum is on the early modern period, but the study of later periods in the history of European expansion is not excluded.

II. MEMBERSHIP AND DUES:

The members of the Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction shall be those persons who have an interest in the programs of the Forum and who pay the annual dues established by the Executive Committee, or who are exempted from payment by that Committee. A member in good standing may vote, hold office, and participate in all of the activities of the Forum. The schedule of dues shall be proposed by the Executive Committee of the Forum and approved by a majority vote of those present at the biennial business meeting of the Forum. Dues will be payable annually on the first of January.

III. OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES:

The officers of the Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction shall be: President, Vice President, Editor, and Secretary-Treasurer.

The standing committees shall be: Executive Committee, Program and Local Arrangements Committee for the Biennial Meeting, Nominating Committee, and Off-year Program Committee.

IV. DUTIES AND TERMS OF THE OFFICERS:

The President shall preside over the biennial business meeting of the Forum, call meetings of the Executive Committee at least once annually, and, in consultation with the elect4ed

officers, appoint at-large members of the Executive Committee, members of the two Program Committees and the Chair of the Nominating Committee. S/he is also empowered to name other committees as need arises.

The Vice President shall fulfill the duties of the President in the absence of the President and chair the Program and Local Arrangements Committee for the Regular Meeting, and assist the other officers as necessary.

The Secretary-Treasurer shall record the proceedings of the business meetings of the Forum and of the Executive Committee meetings and publish the minutes in the Newsletter of the Forum. The Secretary-Treasurer shall receive the dues of the Forum and be empowered to spend funds at the direction of the executive Committee. S/he shall keep an accurate accounting of the Forum's financial transactions and report annually to the membership on the state of the Forum's finances. Further, the Secretary-Treasurer shall maintain the membership list of the Forum and implement all mailings to the members as needed or as directed by the President or the Executive Committee.

The terms of the President and Vice President shall be two years and are not immediately renewable, although any officer may be re-elected after an interlude of two years. The term of the Secretary-Treasurer shall be tow years and is renewable indefinitely.

The terms of elected officers will ordinarily begin immediately following the conclusion of the biennial business meeting, or in any case, at any agreed upon time not more than ninety days after the biennial business meeting.

V. DUTIES AND TERMS OF THE COMMITTEES:

The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President, Editor, Secretary-Treasurer, immediate past President, and four members-at-large, including one graduate student. The Committee members-at-large will be appointed by the President, with due consideration for the diverse interests of the Forum's membership. A meeting of the Executive Committee shall be called by the President at least once annually. A quorum shall consist of four members. The graduate student member shall serve for two years; other members-at-large shall serve for four years.

The Nominating Committee shall consist of three members. The chair shall be named by the outgoing President. The other two members of the Nominating Committee shall be elected at the biennial business meeting. Members of the Nominating Committee shall serve for two years. The Nominating Committee shall canvas the membership for names of possible candidates to fill the offices of the Forum and shall have ready at the next biennial business meeting a single slate of nominees for the offices in which there are vacancies.

The Program and Local Arrangements Committee for the Regular Meeting shall consist of the Vice President, who will serve as chairperson, and at least three other members appointed by the President. The Program and Local Arrangements Committee is responsible for drawing up the programs of the Forum and determining the site of the biennial meeting. At least six months before each biennial meeting, the Program and Local Arrangements Committee shall solicit the membership for proposals for papers.

The Off-year Program Committee shall arrange for sessions at the Annual Meeting of the American Historical Association related to the interests of the Forum. The chairperson of this committee shall be named by the President. The chairperson will then recruit additional members to this committee as needed.

VI. MEETINGS OF THE FORUM:

The Forum shall have a "regular" meeting every other year, and shall sponsor a session at the American Historical Association annual meeting in the years when regular meetings are not held. The regular meetings of the Forum are the responsibility of, and shall be planned by, the Program and Local Arrangements Committee, of which the Vice President serves as chairperson. The off-year meetings at the American Historical Association shall be planned by the committee named for that purpose by the President.

VII. BUSINESS MEETINGS:

A business meeting of the Forum shall be included in the regular biennial meeting of the Forum, at which time the President, Vice-President, Editor, and Secretary-Treasurer shall report to the members of the Forum and new officers will be nominated and elected. Nominations from the floor may be proposed at these business meetings. The members present at the regular business meeting or at any special business meeting shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting any business of the Forum. A summary of the business meeting shall be prepared by the Secretary-Treasurer and published in the first issue of the Newsletter after the meeting takes place.

VIII AMENDMENTS:

Proposed amendments to the constitution of the Forum must be in writing and endorsed by three members in good standing. The President shall bring such proposals before the Executive Committee. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the Executive Committee (i.e., five members of the Committee), the proposed amendment shall be brought to the next biennial business meeting. Amendments must be approved by a majority vote of members attending that meeting.

IX POWERS:

All duties and responsibilities not specifically assigned will

fall under the authority of the Executive Committee.

CALL FOR PAPERS: FEEGI BIENNIAL MEETING, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA, FEBRUARY 19-20, 2000:

The Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction will hold its third biennial meeting at Flagler College in St. Augustine, Florida, on February 18 & 19, 2000. The Forum is concerned with the expansion of Europe and the world-wide response to the expansion, from its beginnings in the 10 century to the middle of the 19th century. It seeks participation by scholars in all areas of the field and encourages submissions from

individuals with an interdisciplinary focus. Both individual and group proposals are welcomed; proposals for round-table discussions will also be considered. Past panels have addressed questions related to transnational commerce, missionary activity, varieties of resistance to European expansion, the role of law and the military in the governance of empires, race, gender, and the emergence of colonial identity. In recognition of this year's meeting site, the organizers would welcome papers related to the theme "Cities, Entrepots, and Outposts." All other topics, however, are also welcomed. Individual proposals should include the following: a 250-word abstract for each paper and a curriculum vitae for each participant which provides complete contact information. Panel proposals should also include a 250word abstract of the panel rationale. Inquiries and proposals should be addressed to Professor Jane Landers, Vanderbilt University, Department of History, Box 1802 Station B, Nashville, TN 37235. Telephone: (615) 322-3403; Fax (615) 343-6002; E-mail: jane.landern@vanderbilt.edu.

Completed proposals must reach Jane Landers by October 15, 1999. Further details on registration, program, and accommodations will be posted later.

MEETINGS and NET ADDRESSES OF INTEREST:

Call for Papers: Annual Meeting of the French Colonial Historical Society, Charleston, May 17-20, 2000.

The Carolina Lowcountry and Atlantic Connections Institute of the College of Charleston will host the annual meeting of the French Colonial Historical Society. Individual and, preferably, complete panel proposals should be sent no later than October 1, 1999 to Philip Boucher, Dept. of History, RH 409, University of Alabama in Huntsville, Huntsville, AL 35899. Or, fax to 256-890-6477, or email to: boucherp@email.uah.edu. The Society examines in broad, interdisciplinary and comparative perspectives French experiences overseas from 1500 to the present.

LATITUDE: THE SCIENCE OF SAILING THE WORLD

What is the Y2K Problem? What does it have to do with sailing the globe? For an answer check out the bottom of page: <http://www.ruf.rice.edu/~feegi/calend.html>

What Can't You Ever Produce a Perfect Map? A mathematical theorem called Girard's Theorem has the answer. See it explained at

<http://math.rice.edu/~polking/cartography/>

or check on the "Math in Maps" icon.

What did Ships Look Like? See the images of the models in Lisbon's National Maritime Museum at:

<http://www.ruf.rice.edu/~feegi/ship.html>

An educational site designed in conjunction with the "Passages to Asia" exhibit. The site illustrates the changes in cartography and navigation that made sailing the globe possible for the first time.

FEEGI FORMALLY APPROVED FOR AFFILIATE STATUS WITH THE AHA; JOINT SESSION REPORT:

The Executive Committee of FEEGI met briefly at the January, 1999 meeting of the American Historical Association and was pleased to learn from Secretary-Treasurer Carla Rahn Phillips that FEEGI has been granted new status as the 105th society to be affiliated with the AFIA.

Vice President Jane Landers also reports on FEEGI's joint

session at the January, 1999 meeting of the ARA:

"The Forum on European Expansion and Global Interaction co-sponsored a panel with the Conference on Latin American History at the American Historical Association which met in Washington, D.C. in January 1999. Edmund Abaka of the University of Miami chaired the session entitled "African Identity and Resistance in Colonial Spanish America," and Colin Palmer of City University of New York commented on the papers of Matthew Restall, of Penn State, and Jane Landers of Vanderbilt University. Landers' paper, entitled "Black Kingdoms/Black Republics: Maroon Communities and Their Transformations in 17th Century Colombia and Mexico," traced the evolution of maroon settlements which were commanded by Africanborn kings in the sixteenth century but which by the 17th century were cooperatively led by acculturated creoles and African-born war captains. Landers examined ethnicity and political and religious institutions in Matudere, a large maroon settlement in Colombia that was destroyed by Spanish expeditionaries in the 1690s. She also explored how the determined resistance of maroons in the Orizaba region of New Spain enabled them to transform their settlements into free black towns and to claim the status of a black republic -a status which even Viceroy Velasco acknowledged. Landers found that by the eighteenth century these black republics had lost their distinctive

character and had evolved into more generic pueblos of free blacks, mestizos, and Spaniards. In a paper entitled "Were there Afro-Yucatecans in the Colonial period?" Matthew Restall also explored African ethnicity, community, and identity in colonial Yucatan. He explored African ethnicity, community, and identity in colonial Yucatan. He found that although the African and Spanish populations were roughly equal during the conquest period, by the 18th century Maya demographic collapse and the rapid growth of pardo (mulatto) and mestizo populations altered Afro-Yucatecan identity and community. Restall found that enslaved and free Africans were largely congregated in cities such as Merida and Campeche where he examined their occupational and militia roles, social mobility, and community formation. After commending the panelists on their research, Colin Palmer warned that an overemphasis on resistance might obscure the continuing oppression of the enslaved and asked for greater care and specificity in assigning racial and ethnic categories. Following Palmer's comments, the audience of approximately fifty engaged in a lively set of questions and discussion on the themes of identity and community."

FEEGI
MEMBERSHIP
AND
NEWSLETTER
INFORMATION

THE FORUM ON EUROPEAN EXPANSION AND GLOBAL INTERACTION IS A BROAD INTER-DISCIPLINARY GROUP DEVOTED TO THE STUDY OF EUROPEAN EXPANSION IN A WORLD-WIDE SCOPE BEFORE CA. 1820. FEEGI IS EQUALLY INTERESTED IN NATIVE RESPONSES AND ADAPTATIONS TO THIS EXPANSION. MEMBERSHIP IS \$10.00 PER CALENDAR YEAR. PLEASE SEND CHECKS TO:

FEEGIINTERIM
SECRETARY/TREASURER
CARLA PHILLIPS
DEPARTMENT OF
HISTORY-614 SOC.SCI.
267 19TH AVE. SOUTH
UNIVERSITY OF
MINNESOTA
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55455
Tel. (612) 626-1796
Fax (612) 624-7096